
UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Date: May 21, 2024 
Time: 5:30 p.m. 
Location: Social Room, Wesbrook 
Community Centre 
 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Motion: THAT the Board approve the May 21, 2024 open session agenda, as

circulated.

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. Motion: THAT the Board approve the April 16, 2024 open session minutes, as 1 

circulated.

D. DELEGATIONS
None.

E. EXTERNAL REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS
1. Campus and Community Planning Report – Carole Jolly, Director of Community  5

Development and Engagement, Campus and Community Planning

2. Electoral Area A Director Monthly Report – Jen McCutcheon, Electoral Area A
Director

F. REPORTS
1. May 2024 Management Report 7 

2. Online Version of the UNA Guidebook Report – Glenda Ollero, Communications  20
Manager

Recommendation:

THAT the Board approve the online version of the UNA Guidebook for publication on
the UNA website and distribution to the community.

3. UNA Administrative Office Lease Renewal Report – Wegland Sit, Operations 24 
Manager

Relevant Attachments:

• Lease Extension Agreement for the UNA Administrative Office 27 

• Wesbrook Village Sublease Office Form Lease for the UNA Administrative  32
Office 2018-2021



UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Date: May 21, 2024 
Time: 5:30 p.m. 
Location: Social Room, Wesbrook 
Community Centre 
 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Board approve the lease extension agreement for the UNA Administrative 
Office and authorize the Chair to execute the agreement, as circulated. 

4. Print Issue Publication Options for The Campus Resident Report – Glenda 100 
Ollero, Communications Manager

Recommendation:

THAT the Board direct staff to

• Option A – begin the work required to transition The Campus Resident to
publish more print editions as recommended in Option A of the circulated
report.

• Option B – begin the work required to transition The Campus Resident to
publish more print editions as recommended in Option B of the circulated
report.

• Option C – continue with the current print schedule.

5. UNA Staff Parking Plan Report – Wegland Sit, Operations Manager 105 

Recommendation:

THAT the Board approve the proposed UNA Staff Parking Permit and Pricing
Structure and direct staff to develop and implement the structure, as circulated.

6. UBC Community Amenity Charges Report – Paul Thorkelsson, Chief 110 
Administrative Officer

Relevant Attachments:

• 2023-24 Community Amenity Charges Revenue and Expenditures – 112 
Letter Dated April 3, 2024

7. Governance & Human Resources Committee Update

a. Corporate Policy Framework Report – Chris Hakim, Corporate Services 119 
Specialist

Relevant Attachments:

• Corporate Policy Framework (#01-19) – May 2024 Draft 122 

• UNA Corporate Policy Index – May 2024 126 

Recommendation: 

THAT the Board approve the proposed Corporate Policy Framework (#01-19), as 
circulated. 



UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Date: May 21, 2024 
Time: 5:30 p.m. 
Location: Social Room, Wesbrook 
Community Centre 
 

b. 2024 UNA Board of Directors Election Planning Report – Chris Hakim, 127 
Corporate Services Specialist

Relevant Attachments:

• UNA 2021 Release of Membership Data Report 132 

8. Neighbours Agreement Committee Update – Director Holmes

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None.

H. NEW BUSINESS
None.

I. ADJOURNMENT
Recommendation:

THAT the Board adjourn into a closed session to discuss matters that are, or are related
to, discussions and dealings with other entities or individuals where disclosure of the
information being discussed could be harmful to the UNA’s interests, and the approval of
minutes for a closed session or restricted closed session of a Board meeting.



UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Open Session 

Tuesday, April 16, 2024 
Wesbrook Community Centre 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: 
Richard Watson – Chair 
Bill Holmes 
Eagle Glassheim 
Fei Liu 
Murray McCutcheon

UBC MEMBERS: 
Carole Jolly 
Silvia Magnano 

STAFF:  
Paul Thorkelsson – Chief Administrative Officer 
Abdalla Hobi – IT Specialist 
Athena Koon – Finance Manager 
Chris Hakim – Corporate Services Specialist 
Emmanuel Samoglou – Communications Specialist 
Glenda Ollero – Communications Manager 
Wegland Sit – Operations Manager 

A. CALL TO ORDER
The University Neighbourhoods Association (UNA) Board meeting’s open session was
called to order at 5:31 p.m.

The Chair acknowledged that the meeting was held on the traditional and unceded
territories of the Musqueam people.

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
MOVED by the Chair

SECONDED by Director McCutcheon

THAT the Board approve the April 16, 2024 agenda, as circulated. 

CARRIED 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
MOVED by the Chair

SECONDED by Director Glassheim

THAT the Board approve the March 12, 2024 minutes, as circulated. 

CARRIED 

1



UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Open Session 

Tuesday, April 16, 2024 
Wesbrook Community Centre 

D. DELEGATIONS
None.

E. EXTERNAL REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS
1. Campus and Community Planning Report

Carole Jolly, the UBC Director of Community Development and Engagement,
presented the report contained in the meeting package, followed by questions from
the Board.

2. Electoral Area A Monthly Report

The report contained in the meeting package was presented, followed by questions
from the Board.

F. REPORTS
1. April 2024 Management Report

The Management team presented their respective reports contained in the meeting
package, followed by questions from the Board.

2. 2023-24 UNA Staff Work Plan 4th Quarter Update

The Chief Administrative Officer presented the report contained in the meeting
package, followed by questions from the Board.

3. 2024-25 UNA Staff Work Plan

The Chief Administrative Officer presented the report contained in the meeting
package, followed by questions from the Board.

MOVED by the Chair

SECONDED by Director Holmes

THAT the Board approve the 2024-25 UNA Staff Work Plan, as circulated and 
commented on. 

CARRIED 
4. 2024/25 Board Projects Report

The Finance Manager presented the report contained in the meeting package,
followed by questions from the Board.

MOVED by Director Holmes

SECONDED by Director Glassheim

THAT the Board approve the funding of the proposed list of projects, as 
circulated. 

CARRIED 

2



UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Open Session 

Tuesday, April 16, 2024 
Wesbrook Community Centre 

5. Finance & Audit Committee Update

a. 2023/24 Year End Audit Plan Report

The Finance Manager presented the report contained in the meeting package.
No questions followed.

b. FY2023/24 Capital Reserve Transfer

The Finance Manager presented the report contained in the meeting package,
followed by questions from the Board.

MOVED by Director Holmes

SECONDED by Director Glassheim

THAT the Board approve the transfer to the Capital Reserve equal to the 
amortization amount for capital assets for fiscal year 2023/24 minus the 
amortization of the deferred capital contributions. 

CARRIED 
6. Governance & Human Resources Committee Update

a. Byelection & Appointment Process Report

The Corporate Services Specialist presented the report contained in the meeting
package, followed by questions from the Board.

MOVED by the Chair

SECONDED by Director McCutcheon

THAT the Board direct staff to draft the bylaw amendments, in consultation 
with legal counsel, and policy statements that reflect the general process 
described in the report, as circulated and commented on. 

CARRIED 
b. Corporate Policy Framework Report

The Corporate Services Specialist presented the report contained in the meeting
package, followed by questions from the Board.

7. Neighbours Agreement Committee Update

Director Holmes provided a verbal report. No questions followed.

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None.

H. NEW BUSINESS
None.

3



UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Open Session 

Tuesday, April 16, 2024 
Wesbrook Community Centre 

I. ADJOURNMENT
MOVED by the Chair

SECONDED by Director Glassheim

THAT the Board adjourn into a closed session to discuss matters that are, or are 
related to, discussions and dealings with other entities or individuals where 
disclosure of the information being discussed could be harmful to the UNA’s 
interests, and the approval of minutes for a closed session or restricted closed 
session of a Board meeting. 

CARRIED 

The meeting adjourned into a closed session at 7:09 p.m. 

* * * * 

4



Memorandum 

From: Simmi Puri, Communications Manager, Campus + Community Planning 
To: UNA Board 
Date: May 21, 2024 
Subject: Monthly Update from Campus and Community Planning 

Film & Events Notification 

May 

UBC Spring Graduation at Chan Centre for the Performing Arts, Buchanan Courtyard and Main 
Mall from Crescent Road to Memorial Road.  
Wednesday, May 22nd to Friday, May 24th and Monday, May 27th to Thursday, May 30th from 
8am to 4pm each day.   
Crescent Road will be closed each day from 7am to 7pm.  A schedule of ceremonies can be found 
here.  

June 

Longest Day Road Race. Road closures will apply.  
Friday, June 14th from 5pm to 9pm.  Details to come 

Vancouver Half Marathon.  Road closures will apply. 
Sunday, June 23rd from 7:30am to 11am. Details to come 

Roadwork update 

The watermain replacement work on 16th Avenue is progressing well and the northbound lane 
on Wesbrook Mall from Berton Avenue to 16th Avenue is open as of May 9th. The eastbound 
curb lane on 16th Avenue will remain closed from Wesbrook Mall to Binning Road for the 
duration of the project. The pathway on the south side of 16th Avenue will be kept open for 
pedestrians. Learn more: https://planning.ubc.ca/roadwork. 

The various projects in Wesbrook Place are being coordinated to minimize impacts to 
neighbourhood residents and visitors. 

5

https://graduation.ubc.ca/schedule/#:%7E:text=The%20Spring%202024%20Graduation%20ceremonies,View%20future%20graduation%20dates
https://graduation.ubc.ca/schedule/#:%7E:text=The%20Spring%202024%20Graduation%20ceremonies,View%20future%20graduation%20dates
https://planning.ubc.ca/roadwork


2

NCAP Update 

After two rounds of community engagement, targeted workshops with the UNA and detailed 
technical work, the final draft NCAP will be submitted to UBC’s Board of Governors for approval 
in June 2024. NCAP is our pathway to a net-zero, climate resilient community and has been 
shaped and refined through technical planning work with internal and external subject matter 
experts from across disciplines and reflects public input.  

NCAP will adapt and evolve to ensure we are taking advantage of all opportunities including new 
technical advancements and government policies and programs. Regular reporting updates will 
be provided to the community to highlight our progress on actions, and to monitor our progress 
towards our targets and goals.   

Development Update 

The turf on the Vancouver School Board field south of University Hill Secondary School will be 
replaced. Work will begin in May and will be completed in August, 2024.  

Community Update 

Kids Fit starts May 13!  
Our popular Kids Fit program is back! Offered in collaboration with Active Kids (School of 
Kinesiology), this six-week physical literacy program features fun group games, sports, and 
exploration of UBC’s world-class recreational facilities, led by senior-level student coaches in 
UBC's School of Kinesiology. Spaces are limited, and the cost is $40 for UNA residents. 
Registration links and more information can be found at www.inspired.ubc.ca/kidsfit.  

6

http://www.inspired.ubc.ca/kidsfit


Page 1 of 13 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Report Date: May 3, 2024 

Meeting Date: May 21, 2024 

From:  Paul Thorkelsson, Chief Administrative Officer 

Subject: May 2024 Management Report 

Background 
The May 2024 Management Report is presented for information. 

Decision Requested 

For information. 

Discussion  

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

Some of the key areas that I worked on include the following: 

Board Relations 

• Attended the May 2024 Governance & Human Resources Committee, Land Use
Advisory Committee (by proxy), and Neighbours Agreement Committee meetings.

• Attended the May 2024 special Board meetings.

• Continued the weekly meeting schedule with the UNA Chair.

Operations 

• Started implementation of the new online voting system for the upcoming 2024
UNA Board of Directors election.

• Continued planning for the upcoming 2024 UNA Board of Directors election and
AGM.

• Implemented revised CAO work locations schedule – Thursdays at WCC, Fridays
at OBCC.

Finance 

• Received a report from UBC on the Community Amenity Charges.

• Supported implementation of a new financial software.

7



   
                 

Page 2 of 13 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Programs and Services 

• Supported the Neighbours Agreement Committee in its ongoing negotiations with 
UBC on the new Neighbours Agreement. 

• Supported off-leash dog area working group on its site evaluation. 

• Supported staff in the initial planning for Neighbours Day 2024.  

• Supported UNA input on the draft NCAP – NCAP Staff Working Group, UNA Board 
meeting. 

Human Resources 

• Initiated discussion with external consultant on 2024 compensation review and 
process. 

Community Relations 

• Continued monthly check-in meetings with AVP Campus and Community Planning. 

• Scheduled initial introductory meeting with the UEL Manager. 

• Supported UNA/UBC collaboration efforts supporting newcomers in the community 
– UNA/UBC newcomers discussion group. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

UNA Website 
The Communications Department is working with the UNA Finance & Audit Committee 
Chair and UNA Finance Manager on updating the UNA website’s finance section. The new 
section will feature a different organization of information that will be distributed throughout 
multiple pages. The finance section will also get its own menu and will be featured more 
prominently on the navigation bar. 
 
The Campus Resident 
As per the Board’s request, the Communications Department has included a report 
investigating options for a more frequent print publication schedule of The Campus 
Resident. The Campus Resident published its latest issue online on May 2, 2024. 
 
Online UNA Guidebook  
As part of its work plan, the Community Engagement Advisory Committee, before it was 
put on hiatus, started work on creating an online version of the printed UNA Guidebook (a 
manual for residents that summarizes the UNA’s role and services). A report presenting a 
draft version of the online UNA Guidebook is included separately for the Board’s review.  
 
 

8



Page 3 of 13 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

UNA Annual Report 2023 
The Communications Department is working on a modified format of the Annual Report 
that will include more metrics, departmental information, and a summary of services. The 
Annual Report is distributed at the Annual General Meeting in September. 

Internal Communications for New Phone System 
The Communications Department has been working with the Operations Department on 
the internal roll-out of the new UNA phone system. The website has been updated with the 
new phone numbers, new business cards have been created and distributed, and ongoing 
communication with staff with reminders to update their email signatures and contacts with 
their new number. We also recorded new system messages with the help of one of our 
Front Desk staff, Nandini Joshi.  

Others: 
• Support for Operations Team for signage and lawn signs.
• Support for the Recreation Team for posters and event promotions.
• Support for the newcomers discussion group.
• Support for Recreation Team in acquiring original artwork from an Indigenous artist.
• Learning new Finance system
• Continuing promotions for the UNA Card (Schedule F and F.1) and coordinating

with Museum of Anthropology Communications Team to coordinate messaging
about the facility’s reopening in June.

• Continuing communications support for the Wesbrook parking enforcement.
• Continuing communications support for the UNA Community Field resurfacing.
• Coordinating with UBC on the content and production of the Services Levy

information flyer.
• Coordinating with UBC on roadworks and traffic updates in and around the

neighbourhoods.
• Working on updating the UNA’s current media relations policy and develop a

framework for responding to and pitching stories to the media.

Upcoming: 
• Working on a report with metrics for the UNA website, UNA newsletter and social

media.
• Coordinate with Admin Department and create a communications plan for the

upcoming elections to build awareness of the changes in the elections process as
well as to recruit candidates.

RECREATION 

Highlights of the May report, include: 

9



Page 4 of 13 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

• In April, the Front Desk Team provided staffing and general support to a series of
community events on weekends including the Yard Sale at WCC, the Easter Event,
Earth Day, Family Movie Night, and Don’t Tell Comedy event at the Old Barn.

• New parking in Hampton Place requires passes.
• Rental space assessment.
• Pricing policy assessment.

Recreation Manager Updates 

• All staff beginning the process of preparation for the Fall of 2024.
• Neighbours Day planning is officially underway.
• Recreation Manager, with assistance of the Bookings Coordinator, has compiled all

data pertaining to a comparison of cost per square foot between the UNA and the
cities of Vancouver, Richmond, and Burnaby. The results, along with a
recommendation of rental adjustment, will be provided to the CAO and the Board in
June 2024.

• Recreation Manager, with assistance of the Bookings Coordinator, has compiled all
data pertaining to a comparison of general programming pricing per unit between
the UNA and the cities of Vancouver, Richmond, and Burnaby. The results, along
with a recommendation of a pricing policy adjustment, will be provided to the CAO
and the Board in June 2024

• The UNA’s first community evening event was a success and now leads recreation
into the presentation of many evening events, focused on the culture and inclusion
of the UNA Residents through the ARTS. Over the next two years, we are
expecting to add a Saturday night at the Barn to our portfolio, with Comedy, One
Person Plays, Readings, Performances and Cultural entertainment.

Human Resources: Staffing 

• Conclusion of spring and summer hiring by Operation: 2 Front Desk Agents (May) –
Andrei Bucur (regular) and Ana Luisa Quaresma (auxiliary).

• Marria Gureva left the UNA on April 29 after working at the Front Desk for two and
half years. We appreciate her great work and service to the UNA community.

• Four recent hires (April): Jenna Han and Jessie started at the front desk; Michael
Zhu and Alan Alveraz have supported the programs and events as well as the
Operations Team.

• Angelica Sanchez who has been recently promoted to Customer Service and
Rental Operations Coordinator. Congratulations!

• New hires: Cody Stepura – Program Coordinator of Sports & Education, and
Hannie Chia – Youth Program Coordinator! Cody started on April 16, and Hannie
started on April 19. It is exciting to finally have a full team again, just in time for Fall
programming.

10



   
                 

Page 5 of 13 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

• Connected Community Coordinator (UTown/UNA) Elias Riger will be departing the 
UNA in July this year to pursue his next challenge in Montreal. Elias has been with 
the UNA for 2 years, and best know for his amazing work with community like Bike 
Jams, Concerts in the Park, and Earth Day. Canada Day will be Elias last event 
with the UNA. 

Campus Recreation Committee (UBC Athletics & Recreation – UNA Recreation Manager) 

• No Updates – Next Meeting:  May 23, 2024 
• UBC recommends any members of the UNA should always consult the online 

schedule prior to visiting: https://recreation.ubc.ca/aquatics/schedule/  

Operations 

• Parking renewal for Wesbrook Place and Hampton Place on April 2. Operations 
were provided with four auxiliary staff to ensure the process went smoothly.  

• Front Desk received many inquiries about the new parking policies from Hampton 
Place residents.  

• A total 310 parking applications were reviewed, and 250 parking permits have been 
issued. See the detailed report below: 

 Total Number of 
Permits 

Wesbrook Resident Parking Permit 107 
Wesbrook Visitor Parking Permit  43 
Hampton Resident Parking Permit 58 
Hampton Visitor Parking Permit 33 
2023 Hawthorn Resident and Visitor 
Parking Permit 8 

 

• 491 new clients were enrolled in our registration system including 311 UNA and 54 
UBC/UTown members. A historical breakdown of the Front Desk’s service 
interactions during the month of April is detailed below: 

  2022 2023 2024 
Open Gym 148 375 338 
Parent & Tot Drop in 135 174  265 
Sports Drop in 95 384 621 
Parking Permit Issued  54 192 250 
New Members 
Enrollment 362 408 491 

11

https://recreation.ubc.ca/aquatics/schedule/


Page 6 of 13 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Facilities 

• New Table Tennis Tables and Sports Equipment. We received four new table
tennis tables in the last week of April - three for WCC and one for OBCC. They are
assembled and ready to use. As of now, all six tables tennis tables are upgraded to
higher quality - it is a great safety enhancement for staff to set up and take down. It
will serve the community players for the next five to ten years.  At OBCC, the long-
expected table tennis drop-in for community play has resumed.

• Basketball backboards have been repaired, reducing potential risk.
• There have been no staff reports on rodent activities at WCC in the month of April.

We will continue to monitor the situation at both centres.
• As a continuous effort to improve the recreation operations onboarding process, we

are working on completing a Front Desk Training and Operations Manual. The front
desk employees are engaged in the production process. We have completed the
sport equipment set up section with tutorial videos and written instructions.
Currently, we are updating and creating instructions on facilities.

Programming 

Programming Registration (April) 

Spring/Summer 
2022 

Spring/Summer 
2023 

Spring/Summer 
#s as of Mar 27, 

2024 

Spring/Summer 
#s as of Apr 29, 

2024 

Programs 
offered 

428 485 485 461 

Registered 
participants 

2752 3567 1879 2302 

Waitlist 349 381 250 287 

Withdrawals 417 488 46 168 

Category Spring/Summer 
2022 

Spring/Summer 
2023 

Spring/Summer 

Revenue as of 
Mar 27, 2024 

Spring/Summer 
Revenue as of 
Apr 29, 2024 

Physical Activity $86,007.03 $120,544.69 $91,833.89 $104,967.19 
Arts $48,040.83 $64,155.15 $37,861.07 $50,129.88 
Music $28,801.80 $29,153.55 $29,162.00 $27,272.75 
Education $22,546.40 $28,666.25 $27,040.15 $31,184.28 
Camps $115,809.72 $138,387.30 $55,205.60 $63,013.90 
Events $955.00 $1,452.00 $800.00 $854.00 

12



Page 7 of 13 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

TOTAL $302,160.80 $382,658.90 $244,280.70 $277,422.00 

Events 

• On April 27, we hosted our first stand-up comedy show in partnership with Don’t
Tell Comedy. They featured a handful of stand-up comedians for an hour of laughs
at the Old Barn Community Centre! There were 56 attendees, and the Old Barn
was a great space for this intimate gathering.  We plan to engage in future
partnerships with Don’t Tell Comedy and other organizations to bring about more
evening shows and concerts at the Old Barn aimed at the 19-35 age group, but
open to all.

o 56 in Attendance
o 21 reside in the UNA
o Engagement

 68% Don’t Tell Comedy (Instagram, Facebook)
 19% UNA Employee Word of Mouth (Instagram, Face2Face)
 11% UNA Newsletter
 2% UNA Website (Events)

• Earth Day. We celebrated Earth Day at the Old Barn Community Centre on April
21. We had 5 workshops which were well-attended, including: Bike Repair with the
Bike Kitchen, DIY Beeswax Wraps Workshop, Children’s Garden Exploration,
Balcony Herb Planting, and participants enjoyed a Plant Scavenger Hunt. There
were also some drop-in activities, such as crafts, and a youth-led bake sale.

Fitness & Group Exercise 

• APRIL - Fitness Centre Attendance Totals

Wesbrook Monthly 
Totals 

= 
4205 

Old Barn Monthly 
Totals = 520 

Numbers by Day 

Sunday Total 417 Sunday Total 60 Sunday Total 477 
Monday total 728 Monday total 107 Monday total 835 
Tuesday total 758 Tuesday total 89 Tuesday total 847 
Wednesday Total 658 Wednesday Total 84 Wednesday Total 742 
Thursday total 577 Thursday total 64 Thursday total 641 
Friday Total 587 Friday Total 73 Friday Total 660 
Saturday total 480 Saturday total 43 Saturday total 523 

Fitness Centre Revenue 

Wesbrook Community Centre - Membership Revenue 

13



Page 8 of 13 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Pass Youth 
Youth 
Revenue Resident 

Resident 
Revenue 

Non-
Resident 

Non-
Resident 
Revenue 

Total 
# Total $ 

10 Punch 
Pass 10 $381.00 52 $2,476.24 28 $1,599.92 90 $4,457.16 
1 Month 
Pass 32 $1,219.20 101 $4,809.62 12 $685.68 145 $6,714.50 
3 Month 
Pass 1 $104.76 36 $4,114.44 3 $428.58 40 $4,647.78 
6 Month 
Pass 0 $0.00 3 $628.56 1 $-  4 $628.56 
Year Pass 0 $0.00 5 $1,523.80 0 $-  5 $1,523.80 
Total 43 1704.96 197 13552.66 44 2714.18 284 $17,971.8 
Old Barn Community Centre - Membership Revenue 

Pass Youth 
Youth 
Revenue Resident 

Resident 
Revenue 

Non-
Resident 

Non-
Resident 
Revenue 

Total 
# Total $ 

10 Punch 
Pass 5 $119.05 19 $542.83 2 $76.20 26 $738.08 
1 Month 
Pass 2 $47.62 12 $342.84 1 $38.10 15 $428.56 
3 Month 
Pass 0 $-  5 $76.19 0 $-  5 $76.19 
6 Month 
Pass 0 $-  1 $-  0 $-  1 $-  

Year Pass 0 $-  3 $238.10 0 $-  3 $238.10 

Total 7 166.67 40 1199.96 3 114.3 50 1,480.93 
Combined - Membership Revenue 

Pass Youth 
Youth 
Revenue Resident 

Resident 
Revenue 

Non-
Resident 

Non-
Resident 
Revenue 

Total 
# Total $ 

10 Punch 
Pass 15 $500.05 71 $3,019.07 30 $1,676.12 116 $5,195.24 
1 Month 
Pass 34 $1,266.82 113 $5,152.46 13 $723.78 160 $7,143.06 
3 Month 
Pass 1 $104.76 41 $4,190.63 3 $428.58 45 $4,723.97 
6 Month 
Pass 0 $0.00 4 $628.56 1 $-  5 $628.56 
Year Pass 0 $0.00 8 $1,761.90 0 $-  8 $1,761.90 
Total 50 1871.63 237 14752.62 47 2828.48 334 19452.73 

14



Page 9 of 13 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Comparable 2023-2024 

2023 2024 Difference 
WCC Fitness 
Membership Revenue 

$12,333.57 $17,971.8 +$5,638.23 

OBCC Fitness 
Membership Revenue 

$1,438.07 $1,480.93 +$42.86 

OBCC & WCC Fitness 
Centre Attendance 

1952 4205 2,253 more uses 
in both fitness 
centres.  

Rentals & Bookings 

BOOKINGS REPORT APRIL 2024 

Room Total Hours  Rate  Booking  Tax included 

Total 33.5 2717  $   2,852.85 

BOOKINGS REPORT APRIL 2023 

Room Total Hours  Rate  Booking  Tax included 

Total 55 4049.5  $   4,251.98 

• The following factors are contributing to the decrease of revenue in rentals and
bookings at the UNA:

o Increased demand for programming space inside the UNA, decrease the
amount of space available for rental.

15



Page 10 of 13 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

o Increased demand on booking space by UNA Associated meetings and
events

OPERATIONS + SUSTAINABILITY 

Green Depot  

Increase of Hours 

The Green Depot is now open for 39.5 hours per week with the help of our two Green 
Depot Attendants, Lydia and Rhoswen – and almost 20 dedicated volunteers. 

Installation of a Community Library 

A new Community Library has been installed at the Green Depot. This project allows the 
Green Depot to accept used books – while simultaneously circulating them through the 
community and therefore increasing their lifespan.  

Dog Waste Bag Bundles 

Featured on the Community Library shelf in the Green Depot, dog owners will now be able 
to take free bundles of dog waste bags that have been compiled from recycled plastic 
bags at the Green Depot. This initiative seeks to repurpose plastic bags that would 
normally be at the end of their lifespan.   

UBC x SEEDS Shade Mapping Partnership Project 

The UNA has partnered with UBC SEEDS on a student-led research project that will run 
throughout the Summer of 2024. The project will work to map shade across UNA 
neighborhoods and will consider implications for human wellbeing, natural areas 
management, and equitable access to shaded areas.  

UNA Yard Space Update 

A new meeting is scheduled for a high-level discussion regarding the future of the UNA 
Yard Space later in May with UBC and a consultant. As the project moves into the detailed 
design phase, UNA will also invite UNA municipal service provider Badger Earthworks to 
attend future meetings. 

16



Page 11 of 13 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Metro Vancouver Stage 1 Water Restrictions 

The region-wide water regulations are an effective way to help us use our drinking water 
wisely. Please see Residential Water under Metro Vancouver Stage 1 Regulations.  

Sidewalk enhancement and irrigation repairing at East Hampton 

UNA Operations is working with the UNA municipal team for the repair of the boulevard 
irrigation system in the East Hampton area. This includes the area in the East roundabout 
as well as the along the East sidewalk on East Hampton Area. The municipal team will 
review the widening sidewalk project at the sidewalk near Balmoral driveway. The purpose 
is to enhance the user experience as this area receives regular usage from families and 
kids going in and out of school during the school year. Both projects are at the initial 
planning phase and are scheduled for the summer 2024 season. 

Water Main Replacement on 16th Avenue 

Approximately 400m of aging water main along 16th Avenue from Wesbrook Mall to 
Binning Road needs replacement. The work will take place between April 22nd and June 
30th and construction impacts will be localized to the eastbound curb lane on 16th Avenue 
and the northbound lane of Wesbrook Mall at the roundabout. During construction, access 
to, from and around Wesbrook Place will be maintained, however, there will be detours in 
place so residents and visitors should anticipate some delays. Learn more  

High Impact Event Advisory for May and June 2024 

May UBC Spring Graduation Wed. May 22 – Fri. May 24 and Mon. May 
27 – Thurs. May 30 

June Longest Day Road Race Friday, June 14 
Vancouver Half Marathon Sunday, June 23 

FINANCE 

Fiscal 2023/24 Closing: 
Our key focus in April was trying to review and complete all the transactions for fiscal 
2023/24 and be ready for the annual audit work. The annual audit had started in early May 
and so far, everything is on schedule. The Finance & Audit Committee will be meeting with 
the auditors from Johnsen Archer LLP at the end of June and the Auditor will then be 

17

https://metrovancouver.org/services/water/lawn-watering-regulations
https://planning.ubc.ca/roadwork
https://planning.ubc.ca/event/ubc-spring-graduation-6
https://planning.ubc.ca/event/longest-day-road-race-1
https://planning.ubc.ca/event/vancouver-half-marathon


Page 12 of 13 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

invited to meet with the Board at the July Board meeting. In terms of the final quarter end 
report for fiscal 2023/24, since there is no Finance and Audit Committee meeting in May, it 
will be reviewed by the Committee at the next meeting and will be submitted at the next 
Board meeting.  

Financial System Implementation:  
The new financial system has been implemented and training have been provided to all 
the users by now. There are some areas still need to be addressed and adjusted but 
overall, the feedback received have been positive so far. Due to the transitions and all the 
data uploading requirement, the first month end with the new system will be slowed down 
and delayed as expected for the first month but should be able to catch up to normal 
closing time afterward. After the first month end closing with the new system, it should 
wrap up the transition phase of the new system implementation. 

Group Registered Retirement Savings Plan 

In October 2023, the Board approved adding a Group Registered Retirement Savings 
Plan (GRSP) program to all the employees in Salary Band Level 2 and 3 effectives this 
fiscal year. The program has been implemented successfully and well received by the 
staff.    

Financial Implications 
None. 

Operational Implications 
None. 

Strategic Objective 

None. 

Attachments 

None. 

18



Page 13 of 13 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Concurrence 

1. Athena Koon, Finance Manager
2. Dave Gillis, Recreation Manager
3. Glenda Ollero, Communications Manager
4. Wegland Sit, Operations Manager

Respectfully submitted, 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

19



Page 1 of 4 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Report Date: May 10, 2024 

Meeting Date: May 21, 2024 

From:  Glenda Ollero, Communications Manager 

Subject: Online Version of the UNA Guidebook 

Background 
As part of its work plan, the Community Engagement Advisory Committee, before it was 
put on hiatus, started work on creating an online version of the printed UNA Guidebook 
(a manual for residents that summarizes the UNA’s role and services).  

Decision Requested 

THAT the Board approve the online version of the UNA Guidebook for publication on 
the UNA website and distribution to the community. 

Discussion 

The original printed version of the UNA Guidebook was created in 2021 as a short 
manual to help residents learn about the UNA and its services. It is updated periodically, 
distributed in new buildings, and available at the community centres. 

A benefit of having an online version of the Guidebook is that it can be updated instantly 
as new services become available and it will be easily translatable to multiple languages 
via web/browser plug-ins. The online version also has a new section for resources for 
newcomers (note that this section will be added to the print version as well in its next 
edition). For now, the printed Guidebook will continue to be circulated, however, the 
online version will help with lowering print volumes. 

The online Guidebook will be hosted within the UNA website and will have links 
directing readers to UNA services within the website. The online Guidebook was built 
with mobile in mind and is easy to navigate/read on a smart phone. Also, once 
approved by the Board for online publication, it will be added as a featured item on the 
UNA website’s menu.  

To view the draft of the online Guidebook, please visit myuna.ca/guidebook. 

20

https://www.myuna.ca/guidebook


   
                 

Page 2 of 4 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Mobile Mock-up 

 
 

 

 

 

 

21



   
                 

Page 3 of 4 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

New Menu Mock-up 

 
 

Financial Implications 
The online Guidebook was budgeted at $10,000. 

 

Operational Implications 
The Communications Department has spent time designing the online Guidebook and 
updating its contents. More work from the department will be required in revising, 
distributing and promoting the site following feedback or approval from the Board.  

 

Strategic Objective 

Creating Connections 

 

Attachments 

None. 

 

 

22



Page 4 of 4 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Concurrence 

None. 

Respectfully submitted, 

_____________________________ 
Glenda Ollero 
Communications Manager 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

23



Page 1 of 3 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Report Date: May 10, 2024 

Meeting Date: May 21, 2024 

From:  Wegland Sit, Operations Manager 

Subject: UNA Administrative Office Lease Renewal 2024 

Background 
The UNA Administrative Office lease is up for renewal. Staff is recommending that the 
UNA renew the lease for a period of five years with conditions in the agreement that will 
allow the organization to expand into larger office space when a new office space 
becomes available. 

Decision Requested 

THAT the Board approve the lease extension agreement for the UNA Administrative 
Office and authorize the Chair to execute the agreement, as circulated. 

Discussion 

The lease for the UNA Administrative Office located at 202-5923 Berton Avenue expires 
on July 31, 2024. The UNA has been in this current location since 2018. The UNA 
formerly occupied the adjacent office location at 201-5923 Berton Avenue. However, as 
a cost saving measure, recommended by the 2016 Joint Financial Task Force (JFTF), 
the UNA switched locations and downsized from an area of 2859 square feet to the 
current location, an area of 1661 square feet. 

The move to the smaller office location was done as a cost-cutting measure without the 
benefit of office space needs assessment for the organization.  

In 2022, a new round of an assessment of UNA main office space was completed. The 
consultant and the assessment report suggested that the UNA office requires 
approximately 3300 square feet of office space to house the full complement of 
administrative staff (including the administration, operations, communication, and 
finance departmental needs). 

The UNA has worked with UBCPT since 2022 on locating a larger and more suitable 
office space for the UNA Main Office. Unfortunately, there has been no opportunity for 
new or additional office rental space. The contributing factors include the lack of suitable 
spaces, potential suitable spaces were in the middle of multi-year term contracts, or the 
existing tenant continuing their lease. 

24



Page 2 of 3 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Based on the most recent communication with UBCPT, they do not expect to see any 
office space in the range of 3300-4000 square feet to become available in the next 2 
years. 

Staff will continue actively pursuing a larger office space adequate to house all 
administrative staff in a single location. Staff is recommending that the UNA enter into a 
five-year renewal for the current Berton location, with an option to move to a larger 
office space under the Wesbrook Properties portfolio when one becomes available.  

The new agreement also includes a provision to offer five complementary secured and 
designated parking spaces for office staff to utilize. 

Financial Implications 
UBCPT, the landlord, has agreed to renew the current lease at $28.00 per square feet 
(psf) with new rates presented in the following schedule: 

• Year 1 to Year 2: $32.00 psf, represents a 14.3% increase versus the original
base rent of $28.00 psf since June 2022

• Year 3 to Year 4: $34.00 psf (6.25% increase)

• Year 5: $36.00 psf (5.88% increase)

The original Base Rent at $28.00 has stayed the same since the second extension 
lease that was signed in June 2022. 

The Common Area Management (CAM) cost is estimated annually and passed to the 
tenant in March. Currently, the CAM cost is at $16.99 psf. In the current economic 
environment, in consideration of the raising inflation rate, interest rate, and the general 
cost of utilities, as well as material supplies and labors, it is challenging to predict an 
accurate CAM adjustment. UBCPT suggested that, based on their best estimate, the 
CAM could rise anywhere between 5% and 15%. 

The funds for the current office location are fully accounted for within the approved UNA 
2024-25 Budget. 

Operational Implications 
For the present time, the lack of sufficient and appropriate office space for the UNA 
main office will mean administrative staff will continue to use space within the Wesbrook 
Community Centre. 

25



Page 3 of 3 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

The UNA staff will continue to work with UBC Campus Planning and UBCPT to identify 
more suitable solutions to accommodating the UNA’s administrative operations in the 
future.  

Strategic Objective 

Organizational Capacity 

Attachments 
1. Lease Extension Agreement for the UNA Administrative Office
2. Wesbrook Village Sublease Office Form Lease for the UNA Administrative Office

- 2018-2021

Concurrence 

1. Athena Koon, Finance Manager

Respectfully submitted, 

_____________________________ 
Wegland Sit 
Operations Manager 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

26



14101591.1 

FOURTH LEASE EXTENSION AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of the 12th day of April, 2024. 

BETWEEN: 

UBC PROPERTIES INVESTMENTS LTD., (Incorporation No. 
BC0578584), a British Columbia company having an office at 
#200 - 3313 Shrum Lane, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6S 0C8, 
as Trustee, for UBC Properties Trust 

(the “Landlord”) 

AND: 

UNIVERSITY NEIGHBOURHOODS ASSOCIATION 
(Incorporation No. S0044722), a British Columbia Society having 
an office at Suite 202, 5923 Berton Avenue, Vancouver, British 
Columbia, V6S 0B3 

(the “Tenant”) 

WHEREAS: 

A. By a sublease dated January 21, 2018 (the “Original Lease”), which sublease
was amended by a lease extension agreement dated April 21, 2021, a second lease extension
agreement made as of March 21, 2022, and a third lease extension agreement made as of
September 21, 2022 (collectively, the “Lease”), the Landlord did sublease to the Tenant certain
premises (the “Premises”) consisting of approximately 1,661 rentable square feet and
described as Unit #202 of the Building located at 5923 Berton Avenue, Vancouver, British
Columbia, all as more particularly described in the Lease for a term expiring on July 31, 2024
(the "Term").

B. The Landlord and the Tenant have agreed to extend the Term and further modify
the terms of the Lease on the terms and conditions set out herein.

NOW THEREFORE: 

In consideration of the premises, the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged by the parties, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 

1. The Term of the Lease is hereby extended for a period of Five (5) years 
commencing on August 1, 2024 and expiring on July 31, 2029 (the "Fourth Extension Term"). 

27



- 2 -

14101591.1 

3. The Tenant shall pay to the Landlord the following Minimum Rental in 
accordance with the Lease and without demand, deduction or right of offset, in advance, in 
equal monthly instalments on the first day of each month during the Fourth Extension Term: 

Period 
Annual Minimum 

Rental 
Monthly Minimum 

Rental 

Minimum Rental per 
annum per square 
foot of the Area of 

the Premises 

August 1, 2024 to 
July 31, 2026 

$53,152.00 $4,429.33 $32.00 

August 1, 2026 to 
July 31, 2028 

$56,474.00 $4,706.17 $34.00 

August 1, 2028 to 
July 31, 2029 

$59,796.00 $4,983.00 $36.00 

4. The Tenant is continuing occupation of the Premises in its "as is" condition and 
the Landlord is not required to perform any work to the Premises. The Tenant confirms that all 
Landlord's Work has been completed in accordance with the terms of the Lease. 

5. The Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree that the Tenant has no further 
rights of renewal or extension with respect to the Lease, as amended herein, except as set out 
in paragraph 10 herein. 

6. Section 8.1 of the Original Lease is amended by deleting the reference to: 

 “However, throughout the Term, the Landlord shall make available for the Tenant, to 
use at its option, up to eight (8) parking stalls in the designated parking lot at 5923 
Berton Avenue at the  prevailing monthly rental rates, plus applicable taxes, which rental 
rates may be adjusted by the Landlord from time to time”, 

and substituting same with: 

“However, throughout the Fourth Extension Term, the Landlord shall make available for 
the Tenant, to use at its option, up to five (5) parking stalls in the designated parking lot 
at 5923 Berton Avenue at no cost to the Tenant”.  

7. Notwithstanding any agreement or understanding to the contrary, for the duration 
of the Fourth Extension Term and any subsequent renewal or extension thereof, the Tenant 
shall be responsible for paying the Tenant’s portion of cost of parking area maintenance to the 
Landlord and the Landlord shall include cost of parking area maintenance in the calculation of 
Additional Rental, including through the collection of the Common Area Maintenance Cost in 
section 5.1(b)(i) of the Lease. 

28



- 3 -

14101591.1 

8. The parties agree and acknowledge that, during the Fourth Extension Term, the 
Tenant may provide written notice to the Landlord that the Tenant wishes to relocate from the 
Premises to a property that meets the following criteria: 

(a) is available for sublease by the Landlord as of the date of delivery of such notice;
and

(b) has a rentable area larger than that of the Premises

(such criteria being the “Subleasing Criteria”). 

Upon receipt of such notice, the Landlord shall provide the Tenant with a list of 
properties, if any, that meet the Subleasing Criteria. The Landlord and Tenant may enter into an 
agreement to sublease a property that meets the Subleasing Criteria at fair market rents for 
similar property and pursuant to such terms that are mutually agreeable between the Landlord 
and Tenant.  

9. The Tenant represents and warrants to the Landlord that, save and except as 
specifically set out herein, all improvement allowances and other inducements provided for in 
the Lease have been paid and provided and no further inducements are due to the Tenant 
under the Lease, as amended herein. 

10. Provided that the Tenant duly, punctually and in accordance with the provisions
of the Lease, as amended herein, pays Rental and performs each and every one of the
covenants, provisos and agreements in the Lease, as amended herein, contained on the part of
the Tenant to be paid and performed, and provided that the Tenant has interacted with the
faculty and staff of the Head Landlord and used the services of the Head Landlord such as the
library, computing, networking, security, athletic services of the Head Landlord, all in a manner
and to an extent satisfactory to the Head Landlord, the Landlord will grant to the Tenant an
option to extend the Term, as extended herein, for a period of Five (5) years (the “Fifth
Extension Term”). This option of extension will be exercised by the Tenant by giving written
notice to the Landlord not less than nine (9) months prior to the end of the Fourth Extension
Term, and not more than twelve (12) months prior to the end of the Fourth Extension Term,
electing to extend the Term, as extended herein, for the Fifth Extension Term on the same
terms and conditions set forth in the Lease, as amended herein, save and except this option of
extension, the Landlord’s Work (if any), the fixturing period (if any), rental free periods (if any)
including the Minimum Rental Free Period, and any other tenant inducements (if any), and the
Minimum Rental; and the Tenant's obligations under any indemnities provided by the Tenant in
favour of the Landlord or Head Landlord or any agreement by the Tenant to indemnify the
Landlord or Head Landlord will continue to apply during the Fifth Extension Term and will be
deemed to have commenced on the Commencement Date of Term notwithstanding any
extension of the Term, as extended. The Minimum Rental for the Fifth Extension Term will be
determined as follows:

(a) Minimum Rental payable by the Tenant for the Fifth Extension Term shall be
negotiated and agreed upon between the Landlord and the Tenant based on the
prevailing fair market Minimum Rental as at the commencement of the Fifth
Extension Term for similarly improved premises of similar size, quality, use and
location in buildings similar to the Building in which the Premises is located;

29



- 4 - 

14101591.1 

notwithstanding the above, the Minimum Rental for the Fifth Extension Term 
shall not be less than the Minimum Rental for the last year of the Fourth 
Extension Term. If the Landlord and the Tenant are unable to agree on the 
Minimum Rental for the Fifth Extension Term within three (3) months prior to the 
commencement of the Fifth Extension Term, the matter shall be determined by a 
single arbitrator pursuant to the provisions of the Arbitration Act and in 
accordance with the foregoing provisions with all cost related to said arbitration 
split, equally between the Landlord and Tenant. 

(b) The Landlord and the Tenant will make bona fide efforts to agree as to the fair 
market rental value with respect to the Premises for the Fifth Extension Term. 

(c) If the Tenant fails to exercise the option of extension within the prescribed time 
period referred to above, such option of extension will be null and void and the 
Tenant will have no further option of extension in respect of the Lease as 
amended herein. 

11. This Agreement will be read and construed together with the Lease, and the 
Lease, as modified hereby, will continue in full force and effect for the remainder of the Term of 
the Lease as extended hereby and in accordance with the terms hereof, save and except the 
right of further renewal or extension, Landlord's Work (if any), improvement allowances (if any), 
rental free period(s) (if any) and any other inducements shall not apply to the Fourth Extension 
Term unless specifically set out herein. The Landlord and the Tenant acknowledge and agree to 
perform and observe, respectively, the obligations of the Landlord and the Tenant under the 
Lease as modified hereby. The Landlord and the Tenant hereby confirm and ratify the terms 
and conditions contained in the Lease, as modified hereby.  In the event of a conflict or 
discrepancy between the terms of the Lease and this Agreement, this Agreement will govern. 

12. The Tenant agrees, from time to time, to do or cause to be done all such things, 
and shall execute and deliver all such documents, agreements and instruments reasonably 
requested by the Landlord, as may be necessary or desirable to complete the extension 
contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its provisions and intention. 

13. This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties and 
their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and permitted assigns. 

14. Any capitalized term used in this Agreement which is not defined herein but 
which is defined in the Lease will have the meaning ascribed to that term in the Lease. 

15. This Agreement may be executed and delivered in either paper form or in 
digital form by facsimile transmission, electronic mail in “portable document format” (“.pdf”) 
form or an electronic signature platform such as www.docusign.com. Any such digital 
execution and delivery shall constitute effective execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
Provided however, in the event either the Landlord or the Tenant require this Agreement in 
paper form with original signatures, upon request, the parties shall manually execute this 
Agreement in paper form. 

30



- 5 - 

14101591.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Landlord and the Tenant have executed this 
Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

 
UBC PROPERTIES INVESTMENTS LTD., 
as Trustee for UBC PROPERTIES TRUST 
By its authorized signatory(ies): 

) 
) 
) 

 

 
 
 

) 
) 
) 

 

Authorized Signatory ) 
) 
) 

 

Authorized Signatory )  
 

 
UNIVERSITY NEIGHBOURHOODS 
ASSOCIATION 
By its authorized signatory(ies): 

) 
) 
) 
) 

 

 
 

) 
) 
) 

 

Authorized Signatory ) 
) 
) 

 

Authorized Signatory )  
 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



Page 1 of 5 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Report Date: May 10, 2024 

Meeting Date: May 21, 2024 

From:  Glenda Ollero, Communications Manager 

Subject: Print Issue Publication Options for The Campus Resident 

Background 
During the March 2024 Board meeting, the Board asked staff to investigate options for 
increasing the print publication/circulation of The Campus Resident community 
newspaper. Currently, the paper publishes online every month and in print every quarter 
(September, December, March and June). Staff have investigated two options:  
(1) increase to six print digests; and (b) increase to 12 print issues.

Decision Requested  
THAT the Board direct staff to 

• Option A – begin the work required to transition The Campus Resident to publish
more print editions as recommended in Option A of the circulated report.

• Option B – begin the work required to transition The Campus Resident to publish
more print editions as recommended in Option B of the circulated report.

• Option C – continue with the current print schedule.

Discussion  
Staff have investigated print publication options for The Campus Resident. Details of the 
costs and staff required for its current schedule and two options are included below. A 
table with the summary of costs is also included. 

Current Print Publication Schedule: Four Quarterly Digests 
Total Cost per Year: $15,265 

STAFFING 
Currently, The Campus Resident requires the following staff hours to produce the 
paper at its current publication schedule: 

• Newspaper Editor & Social Media Specialist: 70 hours per month
• Graphic Designer: 12 hours per month

The Newspaper Editor & Social Media Specialist split their time between 
newspaper duties and social media duties. Their newspaper duties include, but 
are not limited to, editing and fact-checking content, managing the website, 
working with volunteer writers, volunteer recruitment, and working with the 
Newspaper Editorial Committee. 

COSTS 

100



   
                 

Page 2 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

The total cost to produce and print four copies of the newspaper every year is 
$15,265.  

Notes: 

• Printing and circulating 6,650 printed copies at 12 pages per issue 
amounts to $2,976.28 per issue or $11,905 per year. 

• The graphic design contractor rate is $70/hour at an average of 12 
hours per issue which amounts to $840 per issue or $3,360 per year. 

• The total excludes the portion of the salary allotted for the newspaper 
duties of the Newspaper Editor and Social Media Specialist. 

• Additional note: In FY 2023-24, we spent $19,530 on the newspaper. 
This included costs for three print issues (first issue was September 
2023), administrative expenses and one-off website expenses that are 
not included in the total cost. 

Option A: Six Bimonthly Digests  
Total Cost per Year: $22,897.68 

STAFFING 
Current print editions are a digest of online stories collected over a quarter. 
Additional print editions of the paper will require more content be produced to fill 
a bimonthly digest. 

A closer look at the Newspaper Editor & Social Media Specialist splitting duties 
between newspaper and social media would be required. As more issues mean 
an increase in time spent by the Newspaper Editor & Social Media Specialist on 
newspaper duties that will affect the amount of time they can spend on their 
social media duties. 

As an organization, the UNA is maturing and the need for additional social media 
activity and coverage of UNA topics and events has continued to grow. The 
discussion and interest in expanding The Campus Resident publishing activity is 
an opportune time to consider additional resources for the Communications 
Department. 

For the necessary support to expand The Campus Resident and support for the 
organization, it is recommended that the Newspaper Editor & Social Media 
Specialist be transitioned into a full-time Newspaper Editor role and a full-time 
Social Media Specialist be hired to cover social media duties. The costs of this 
additional FTE are not included in the evaluation of additional newspaper 
publishing, however, should the Board approve of expanding The Campus 
Resident publishing schedule this additional FTE should be approved at the 
same time. 

101



   
                 

Page 3 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

COSTS 
The cost to produce and print six copies of the newspaper every year is 
$22,897.68.  

Notes: 

• Printing and circulating 6,650 printed copies at 12 pages per issue 
amounts to $2,976.28 per issue or $17,857.68 per year. 

• The graphic design contractor rate is $70/hour for an average of 12 
hours per issue amounts to $840 per issue or $5,040 per year. 

• Inclusive of salary and all benefits, an FTE Social Media Specialist is 
estimated to require an increase to the UNA budget of $95,000-
$100,000. 

• The total excludes the yearly salary of the Newspaper Editor.  
• Additional note: In FY 2023-24, we spent $19,530 on the newspaper. 

This included costs for three print issues (first issue was September 
2023), administrative expenses and one-off website expenses that are 
not included in the total cost. 

Option B: 12 Monthly Issues  
Total Cost per Year: $49,295.36 

STAFFING 
As with the previous option, a closer look at the Newspaper Editor & Social 
Media Specialist splitting duties between newspaper and social media would be 
required.  

It is recommended that the Newspaper Editor & Social Media Specialist be 
transitioned into a full-time Newspaper Editor role. 

It is also recommended that a contractor who can assist with copy editing and 
coverage for vacation be recruited to meet production deadlines. 

As with the previous option, it is also recommended that a full-time Social Media 
Specialist be hired to cover social media duties for the UNA. 

COSTS 
The cost to produce and print 12 copies of the newspaper per year is 
$49,295.36.  

Notes: 

• Printing and circulation of 6,650 printed copies at 12 pages per issue 
amounts to $2,976.28 per issue or $35,715.36 per year. 

102



   
                 

Page 4 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

• The graphic design contractor costs $70/hour at an average of 12 
hours per issue which amounts to $840 per issue or $10,080 per year. 

• An additional contractor for leave coverage estimated at $100/hour at a 
recommended 35 hours per year amounts to $3,500 per year. 

• Inclusive of salary and all benefits, an FTE Social Media Specialist is 
estimated to require an increase to the UNA budget of $95-$100,000 
per year. 

• The total excludes the yearly salary of the Newspaper Editor.  
• Additional note: In FY 2023-24, we spent $19,530 on the newspaper. 

This included costs for three print issues (first issue was September 
2023), administrative expenses and one-off website expenses that are 
not included in the total cost. 

Summary of Costs 

 

Printing 
and 

Mailing 
Costs Per 

Issue 

Printing 
and 

Mailing 
Costs Per 

Year 

Graphic 
Design 

Cost Per 
Issue 

Graphic 
Design 

Cost Per 
Year 

Editorial 
Contractor 
Cost Per 

Year 

TOTAL 
COST 
PER 

YEAR  

Current: 4 2,976.28 11,905.12 840.00 3,360.00 N/A 15,265.12 
Opt A: 6 2,976.28 17,857.68 840.00 5,040.00 N/A 22,897.68 
Opt B: 12 2,976.28 35,715.36 840.00 10,080.00 3,500.00 49,295.36 

 

Financial Implications 

• For Option A (six printed digests per year): $22,897.68 
• For Option B (12 printed issues per year): $49,295.36 
• Inclusive of salary and all benefits, an FTE Social Media Specialist is estimated 

to require an increase to the UNA budget of $95,000-$100,000. 

 
Operational Implications 
Depending on the direction the Board wants to go, the Communications Department will 
have to undergo a reorganization of duties and recruitment of new staff. A dedicated 
Newspaper Editor and the hiring of a dedicated Social Media Specialist would have 
exponential benefits that will impact the entire organization. 
 
 
Strategic Objective 

Creating Connections, Organizational Capacity 
 

103



   
                 

Page 5 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Attachments 

None. 
 
 
Concurrence 
 

1. Athena Koon, Finance Manager 
 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Glenda Ollero 
Communications Manager 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 
 

104



   
                 

Page 1 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Report Date: May 14, 2024 

Meeting Date: May 21, 2024 

From:   Wegland Sit, Operations Manager 

Subject:  Proposed UNA Staff On-street Parking Permit 

Background 
The UNA’s organizational capacity is gradually expanding. Staff are recommending that 
the Board consider the development of an on-street UNA staff parking permit for eligible 
full-time UNA employees. It will allow the organization to provide more accessible 
parking options for full-time employees that are living outside of the UNA area. 

 

Decision Requested  

THAT the Board approve the proposed UNA Staff Parking Permit and Pricing Structure 
and direct staff to develop and implement the structure, as circulated. 

 
Discussion  

The UNA has gradually expanded from 34 full-time and part-time employees in 2018 to 
the current 57 full-time and part-time employees. 

Most of the UNA employees are living outside of the UNA neighbourhoods, with their 
residences spreading all over the Metro Vancouver. Our records show that our full-time 
employees are living in the following municipalities: 

• Vancouver 
• Richmond 
• Burnaby 
• New Westminster 
• Surrey  

As an organization, making it as easy as possible for employees to commute to and 
from work can go a long way. It can help attracting new qualified employees by reducing 
their travel time to and from work. As a bonus, it will help retain the current talent pool to 
stay by providing a more accessible commuting and parking option to full-time staff. 

 

Current Staff Parking Options  

There are limited public transportation options going to work, especially for employees 
that are living in the South Richmond, New Westminster and Surrey area. It means 

105



   
                 

Page 2 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

there is a sizable portion of the full-time employees required to drive to work. The 
geographic location of the UNA created a unique challenge for staff residing in those 
areas. 

For staff members that decide to drive to work, the second challenge is the limited 
parking options available onsite. For paid parking, Impark manages the Save-On-Foods 
surface and underground parking (Lot #1992). Hourly and daily rates are available at 
this parking lot. Impark also offers a staff parking rate at approximately $109.00 per 
month and $1300.00 per year (Tenant rate). Meanwhile, UBC Parking managed parking 
lots are too far away to be applicable for staff use.  

Similar to other municipalities, there are no free parking options available nearby other 
than the on-street 2-hour parking that is invigilated and enforced regularly. The closest 
free parking will be on 16th Avenue East of Binning Road. These parking spaces along 
16th Avenue are typically fully parked by Pacific Spirit Park Visitors and workers in the 
Wesbrook and UBC area 

The combination of our unique geographic location, the lack of rapid transit options that 
connects to other cities, and the limited parking options has created a challenging 
situation for hiring. Unfortunately, this has turned into a Human Resource barrier for 
potential candidates, as qualified candidates cannot justify the parking cost work 
($1300.00+ per year) while the public transit option is not a viable due to long commute 
time work. It has also created a challenge to retain staff as staff are struggling to find an 
affordable parking option. 

With the recent expansion of the recreation department, our Wesbrook Community 
Centre office is running out of work space. The Recreation Team will implement a new 
strategy to address the space limitation by fully utilizing the Old Barn Office Space. 
They will introduce a new rotational desk space arrangement for all full-time staff. This 
means that full-time recreation team members are expected to work in rotation in both 
the Wesbrook Community Centre and Old Barn Community Centre throughout the 
week. With the introduction of this new office space strategy, the UNA team will need a 
viable staff parking solution that enable full-time staff that drive to work to be able to find 
an accessible parking option in both the Wesbrook and Hawthorn areas. 

 

The Proposed UNA Staff Parking Permit 
 

Proposed Eligibility 

Only permanent full-time employees that do not live in the UNA are eligible. Permanent 
full-time employees will be able to apply for a UNA Staff Parking Permit. 

 

106

https://lots.impark.com/IMP/#details=1,1992
https://lots.impark.com/IMP/#details=1,1992
https://parking.ubc.ca/map


   
                 

Page 3 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Proposed Eligible UNA Parking Permits and Pricing Structure 

Full-time staff will be able to purchase the UNA Staff parking permits. The UNA staff 
parking permit is attached to a plate number and non-transferable. This staff parking 
permit will enable eligible staff to park in both Wesbrook and Hawthorn Residential 
Parking Permit Area. 

The UNA Staff Parking Permit is an annual parking permit valid April 1 to March 31 in 
the next year. Staff can purchase UNA staff parking permits at any time during the year, 
with a prorated pricing option.  

UNA Staff Parking Permit is non-refundable, other than during the final off boarding, and 
is limited to one per full-time UNA employee. 

 

Proposed Pricing Structure 

The UNA Staff Parking Permit price will be identical to the price of the UNA Visitor 
Parking Pass offered. For example, as the UNA visitor parking permit is currently at 
$140 per year, the UNA staff parking permit is proposed to be priced at $140 per year.  

UNA Staff Parking Permit will also incur the TransLink tax (Parking Tax), that is 
applicable to all visitor parking sales in the South Coast BC Transportation Authority 
Service Region. 

It is the employee’s responsibility to purchase the appropriate UNA staff parking permit 
to commute to work. It is also their responsibility to obey the on-street parking signage 
and follow the parking rules.  

The UNA is not responsible for damages nor for the compensation of vehicles towed 
because the vehicle is parking against on street parking signage. 

 

Proposed UNA Staff Parking Permit Approval Procedures 

During Staff Onboarding 

As part of the onboarding process, the hiring manager will receive UNA staff on-street 
parking permit application requests from the newly hired staff.  

Existing staff members can apply and submit their staff parking permit application at any 
time during their full-time employment.  

All applications submitted by the hiring manager will be reviewed by the Operations 
Department for approval. 

107

https://www.translink.ca/about-us/about-translink/taxes-and-charges#parking-tax-resources
https://www.translink.ca/-/media/translink/documents/about-translink/taxes-and-charges/development-cost-charges/scbcta-parking-tax-area.pdf
https://www.translink.ca/-/media/translink/documents/about-translink/taxes-and-charges/development-cost-charges/scbcta-parking-tax-area.pdf


   
                 

Page 4 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

The departmental managers and Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) reserve the right to 
approve or reject any parking request.  

During Offboarding 

As part of the offboarding procedure, the departmental managers are responsible for 
recovering the UNA parking permit. 

Staff members must return the UNA Staff Parking Permit on the last day of their 
employment. No refunds will be provided without the return of the actual UNA Staff 
Parking Permit. 

A prorated parking permit refund calculated based on the last day of their employment 
will be provided to the offboarding staff member. 

 

Financial Implications 
The implementation of the UNA staff parking permit is not expected to be a cost center 
as the staff parking permit printing cost will be absorbed as part of the larger UNA area 
wide parking permit and pass printing process.  

From the revenue side, with the expectation of a very limited number of UNA Staff 
Parking permit holders, the revenue generated from this staff parking program is 
expected to be negligible. 

 

Operational Implications 
No significant operations implications are expected with the introduction of the UNA 
Staff Parking Permit. The UNA administrative office will begin the development of the 
UNA staff parking policy.  

UNA parking desk will be trained on how to issue UNA Staff Parking Permit and register 
vehicle information to the eligible staff members. 

UNA invigilators will be informed about the new UNA Staff Parking Permit. And given 
the limited number of eligible full-time staff applicants, no observable impact are 
expected to the on-street parking in Wesbrook area and in Hawthorn Area. 

 

Strategic Objective 

Organizational Capacity 

 

108



Page 5 of 5 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Attachments 
None. 

Concurrence 

1. Athena Koon, Finance Manager

2. Dave Gillis, Recreation Manager

Respectfully submitted, 

_____________________________ 
Wegland Sit 
Operations Manager 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

109



Page 1 of 2 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 

Report Date: May 3, 2024 

Meeting Date: May 21, 2024 

From:  Paul Thorkelsson, Chief Administrative Officer 

Subject: UBC Community Amenity Charges Report 

Background 
The Neighbours Agreement 2020 stipulates that UBC is to annually report to the UNA 
on its use of the Community Amenity Charges (CACs). 

This report includes a summary of revenue and expenditures of the CACs in 2023-24. 

Decision Requested 

For information. 

Discussion 

Section 11.10 of the Neighbours Agreement 2020 prescribes that UBC will annually 
provide an accounting to the UNA as to: 

a) the amount of the CACs collected by UBC;
b) the total cost funded by the CACs for the acquisition and construction of facilities

and amenities within the Neighbourhood Housing Areas; and
c) the total cost funded by the CACs for the acquisition and construction of facilities

and amenities located outside the Neighbourhood Housing Areas.

The attached letter from UBC reports the annual and total CACs revenue and 
expenditures, and the 2024/25 UBC Vancouver Infrastructure Charges & Community 
Amenity Charges Plan. 

Financial Implications 
None. 

Operational Implications 
None. 

110



   
                 

Page 2 of 2 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Strategic Objective 

Governance 

 

Attachments 

1. 2023-24 Community Amenity Charges Revenue and Expenditures – Letter Dated 
April 3, 2024 

 

Concurrence 

1. Athena Koon, Finance Manager 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

111



April 3, 2024 

Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 
University Neighbourhoods Association 
#202-5923 Berton Ave. 
Vancouver, BC V6S 0B3 

Sent via email: paul.thorkelsson@myuna.ca 

Subject: 2023-2024 Community Amenity Charges Revenue and Expenditures 

Dear Mr. Thorkelsson, 

In accordance with the UBC-UNA Neighbours’ Agreement, this letter reports the annual and total Community 
Amenity Charges (CAC) Revenue and Expenditures. In March 2024, UBC’s Board of Governors’ Property 
Committee approved UBC Vancouver’s IIC and CAC Plan that contains revenue and project expenses in a 
10-Year Plan. Similar to municipalities, expenses enable growth and typically come before revenue. The
Board Report and 24/25 IIC-CAC Plan are included as attachments to this letter, along with the following
detailed information on CAC revenue and expenditures:

a) In total, as of March 31, 2024, UBC has collected $16,590,110 in CAC revenue from neighbourhood
development. In 2023-2024, UBC collected $703,911 in CAC revenue from neighbourhood development.

b) In total, as of March 31, 2024, UBC expended $21,919,228 in CAC funds for the acquisition and
construction of Facilities and Amenities within the Neighbourhood Housing Areas. There were no CAC
expenditures in 2023-2024.

c) In total, as of March 31, 2024, UBC has expended $1,430,794 in CAC funds for three projects located
outside the Neighbourhood Housing Areas. These projects include: $30,794 for the outdoor basketball
court adjacent to Thunderbird Parkade (2006), which was later moved to the TEF-4 parking lot with other
funding; $1,100,000 for the UBC Vancouver Childcare Expansion-Kids Club in Acadia (2008); and,
$300,000 for the UNA Skateboard Park (2013).

Currently, future CAC spending is planned to support neighbourhood childcare projects. The Campus Vision 
2050 process included amendments to UBC’s Land Use Plan that enable more campus housing development 
through 2050. If the Minister of Municipal Affairs adopts the Land Use Plan, these changes will result in new 
opportunities for CAC revenue and projects. These future CAC projects will be identified through engagement 
with the UNA in future neighbourhood planning processes and integrated into an updated long-term IIC-CAC 
Plan. If you have any inquiries about CACs, please feel free to reach out to Chris Fay, Director of Strategic 
Policy at Campus and Community Planning, at chris.fay@ubc.ca. 

Yours Truly, 

Michael White 
Associate Vice President 
Campus and Community Planning 
Email: michael.white@ubc.ca | Web: www.planning.ubc.ca 

Enclosures: Annual IIC-CAC Plan (UBC Vancouver) Board Report and 2024-2025 IIC-CAC Plan 

112



113



Template revised: October 15, 2020 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 SUBJECT 2024-2025 UBC Vancouver Infrastructure Impact Charges & Community Amenity Charges Plan 

SUBMITTED TO Property Committee 

MEETING DATE March 12, 2024 

SESSION 
CLASSIFICATION 

Recommended session criteria from Board Meetings Policy: 

OPEN 

REQUEST APPROVAL REQUESTED 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Property Committee, in accordance with authority delegated 
by the Board of Governors, approves the 2024-2025 UBC Vancouver Infrastructure Impact 
Charges (IICs) and Community Amenity Charges (CACs) Plan. 

LEAD EXECUTIVE Robin Ciceri, Vice-President External Relations 

SUPPORTED BY Frank Laezza, Vice-President Finance & Operations 
Michael White, Associate Vice-President Campus and Community Planning 
Bhushan Gopaluni, Vice-Provost and Associate Vice-President Faculty Planning 
John Metras, Associate Vice-President Facilities 
Chris Fay, Director, Strategic Policy, Campus and Community Planning 

PRIOR SUBMISSIONS 
The subject matter of this submission is received annually by the Property Committee, most recently on  
March 21, 2023 (OPEN SESSION) 2023-2024 Infrastructure Impact Charges (IICs) and Community Amenity Charges 
(CACs) Plan (UBC Vancouver) 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This briefing seeks annual Property Committee approval for UBC Vancouver’s Infrastructure Impact Charges (IIC) 
and Community Amenity Charges (CAC) Plan. Under provincial legislation and Board of Governors’ policy, UBC has 
established a municipal-like approval and cost-recovery structure for Vancouver campus growth. IICs and CACs 
are collected from development projects and fund campus infrastructure based on projected growth, 
infrastructure need, and engineering standards. IIC-CAC revenue comes primarily from UBC’s neighbourhood 
growth. Expenses reflect planned infrastructure needed to support growth and are built in advance of the 
associated building capital projects to ensure systems are in place for the buildings to function upon opening. 

The 2024-25 IIC-CAC Plan projects $11.3M in revenue and $17.9M in expenses, with an end-of-year deficit of 
$38.9M, within four years of projected revenue. This is typical of municipal approaches for infrastructure 
financing. The priorities are focused on those needed to enable academic growth including replacing critical 
electrical substation equipment and expanding district energy to new capital project sites. CAC expenditures to 
support community amenities are focused on childcare spaces in neighbourhood lands over the next ten years. 

Under Board of Governors’ policy, IIC-CAC rates are adjusted annually to Statistics Canada’s Non-Residential 
Building Construction Price Index (Vancouver Census Metropolitan Area, Quarter III data). Rates for 2024 were 
increased by 8.1% to account for inflation (see Appendix One). Rates remain comparable to or lower than other 
municipal development charges such as the City of Vancouver (see Presentation One). 

114

https://bog3.sites.olt.ubc.ca/files/2023/03/8_2023.03_2023-2024-Infrastructure-Impact-Charges-Community-Amenity-Charges-Plan.pdf


2024-2025 UBC Vancouver Infrastructure Impact Charges and Community Amenity Charges Plan 

 Page 2 

The IIC-CAC Plan reflects the infrastructure costs identified in master service plans for campus utilities and 
neighbourhood plans with respect to community amenities, with revenue based on projected growth enabled by 
UBC’s Land Use Plan. With the completion of Campus Vision 2050 and submission of the amended Land Use Plan 
to the Province for approval in December 2023, staff have begun updating both future revenue projections as 
well as costs based on updated master service plans and neighbourhood plans. These changes will be reflected in 
future IIC-CAC Plans. 

In the context of updating long-term projections in the IIC-CAC Plan, the Administration will also be taking the 
opportunity to address a number of related issues including determining a more consistent approach to the 
funding of operating and maintenance costs of newly built infrastructure; a review of the development charges 
rate structure to reflect anticipated future revenue and costs, as well as rate application to different types of uses 
(including those eligible for reductions or exclusion); and a review of recent Provincial changes to municipal 
development charge policy and application to honour UBC’s intention of following municipal best practice. The 
results of this work will be reported back to Board in 2025. 

2024-25 IIC-CAC Plan 

A senior Administration planning committee develops the annual IIC-CAC Plan for Board approval. In addition, the 
Administration also seeks Board capital approvals on individual IIC-CAC projects exceeding the delegated Board 
authority threshold (currently $5M). Appendix Two shows the 2024-25 10-Year Plan, including projected revenues 
and expenditures.  

The 2024-25 IIC-CAC Plan projects $11.3M in revenue and $17.9M in expenses, with an end-of-year deficit of 
$38.9M, within four years of projected revenue. Projects are focused on those needed to enable academic growth 
including replacing critical electrical substation equipment and expanding district energy to new capital project 
sites. CAC expenditures to support community amenities are focused on childcare spaces in neighbourhood lands 
over the next ten years.  

Future IIC-CAC Plan updates will adjust revenue and expenditure projections to reflect updated master service 
plans for different infrastructure to enable Campus Vision 2050 growth, described below. Updated master service 
plans for stormwater, water, and district energy are expected in 2024. 

Market Impacts on IIC-CAC Revenue 

IIC-CAC expenses support growth and must be built and funded before revenue is received. As a result, the fund 
operates in a deficit financed by a UBC Treasury line of credit as reflected in UBC’s annual operating budget. This 
deficit financing approach is typical for similar investments in municipalities.  

To manage risk, the deficit is typically kept to three years of projected IIC-CAC revenue. Over the past year, 
projected IIC-CAC revenue from new housing was delayed due to supply chain challenges, rising interest rates, 
and conclusion of the Campus Vision 2050 process. As a result, the current IIC-CAC deficit is approximately four 
years of projected revenue. The 2024/25 IIC-CAC Plan projects future year deficits at approximately five years of 
projected revenue until the late 2020s, with the elimination of the deficit achieved over time as build out is 
achieved in accordance with Campus Vision 2050.  

115



2024-2025 UBC Vancouver Infrastructure Impact Charges and Community Amenity Charges Plan 

 Page 3 

Campus Vision 2050 and the Future Approach to Financing Growth   

The Campus Vision 2050 process included amendments to UBC’s Land Use Plan that enable more campus housing 
development through 2050. If the Minister of Municipal Affairs adopts the Land Use Plan, these changes enable 
increased IIC-CAC revenue and require new expenses to support campus growth. Over the next year, the 
Administration’s Financing Growth Project will lead a review of the long-term IIC-CAC Plan to reflect Campus 
Vision 2050. The results will be presented to the Board of Governors for consideration in early 2025, including: 

• Updating master servicing plans. Reflecting Campus Vision 2050 growth, updating UBC’s infrastructure and 
amenity plan to determine growth needs, expenses, timing, and forecasting for inflationary growth. Examples 
include water, rainwater, and academic district energy plans. 

• Incorporating neighbourhood planning and community engagement to explore community facility needs. 
Similar to the development of utility master service plans, the Administration is working with the UNA and 
community stakeholders to explore future neighbourhood needs for community facilities such as community 
centres, childcare, recreation spaces, etc. Much of this work takes place during neighbourhood plan 
development, with the next area of focus being an update to the Wesbrook Place Neighbourhood Plan, 
anticipated to start in 2024.  

• Updating revenue projections and timing. The majority of development charge revenue comes from market 
housing development and is affected by market demand, interest rates, construction costs, and development 
entitlement. The Administration will work with UBC Properties Trust on projected revenue for future 
neighbourhood growth, subject to provincial approval of UBC’s Land Use Plan.  

• Aligning requests for operations and maintenance costs with IIC projects. To date there has been an 
inconsistent approach to securing the necessary operating funding to support investments in new 
infrastructure. Moving forward, a corresponding strategy and/or funding source should be identified to 
support operations and maintenance. 

• Reviewing the current IIC-CAC rate structure. The updated growth costs and revenue needs from Campus 
Vision 2050 require a consideration of the IIC-CAC rates. UBC’s current fees are generally comparable to or 
lower than similar fees in neighbouring jurisdictions like the City of Vancouver (Appendix One). The rate 
review will ensure UBC development fees continue to meet the university’s needs, reflect municipal 
comparators, and are fair and balanced for different types of campus development including ancillaries (e.g., 
student housing) that pay a reduced fee and academic buildings that do not currently pay fees.  

• Reviewing new provincial development cost charge legislation for potential alignment. As part of UBC’s 
unique local governance, the Administration generally ensures alignment with provincial regulations and 
standards. The Administration will explore updates to the IIC-CAC Plan and associated policies to reflect the 
intent of the Province’s many recent changes to municipal development charge policy. 

 

APPENDICES 

1. 2024 IIC and CAC Rates  
2. 2024-2025 IIC-CAC Plan 

116



Template revised: October 15, 2020 

Appendix One: 2024 IIC and CAC Rates 

IIC/CAC Classification 2023 Rates 

$/ft2 

% increase 
in NRBCPI 

2024 Rates 

$/ft2 

Market Housing $47.12 8.1% $50.94  

Institutional (ancillaries, campus housing, non-market housing) $8.00 N/A $8.65  

Academic Buildings (provincial funding) $0 8.1% $0  

Industry Research $6.28 8.1% $6.79  

Commercial $47.24 8.1% $51.07  

Separate Parking Structures $6.32 8.1% $6.83  

CAC Rates (market housing projects) $3.89 8.1% $4.21 

In addition to the IIC and CAC charges, UBC collects:  

• TransLink’s Regional Transportation Development Cost Charge. This rate increased on January 1, 2024 to 
$1658 for apartments and $2652 for townhouses. The rate for institutional development increased to 
$0.53/sq. ft.  

• Metro Vancouver’s Sewerage and Drainage District Development Cost Charge. UBC collects an equivalent 
fee for Metro Vancouver’s DCC on all market housing projects (apartments) at $1988/unit. Starting 
January 1, 2020, UBC also began collecting an equivalent fee for all non-market housing projects 
($1988/unit) and non-residential projects including institutional buildings ($1.63/sq. ft). 

 

  

117



 Page 2 

Appendix Two: 2024-2025 IIC-CAC Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

118



   
                 

Page 1 of 3 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Report Date: April 29, 2024 

Meeting Date: May 21, 2024 

From:   Chris Hakim, Corporate Services Specialist 

Subject:  Corporate Policy Framework Report 

 
Background 
In December 2023, the Governance & Human Resources Committee discussed the 
Board and the public’s accessibility of the UNA’s corporate policies. The matter was 
deferred to a future point when a new Chief Administrative Officer would be able to 
weigh in. 

This report details a recommendation to approve the accompanying Corporate Policy 
Framework and the reasons and implications for doing so.  

 

Decision Requested  

THAT the Board approve the proposed Corporate Policy Framework (#01-19), as 
circulated. 

 

Discussion  

Currently, the UNA has 32 corporate policies in effect, including the Board Rules of 
Procedure. 29 of these corporate policies list the Board as their approving authority, 
while 3 list the Chief Administrative Officer as their approving authority. However, the 
UNA does not have an existing framework regarding how its corporate policies interact 
and co-exist in a larger governance framework, the development and approval of its 
corporate policies, the delineation between strategic and operational policies, and the 
access of its corporate policies by individuals external to the UNA. 

The proposed Corporate Policy Framework clarifies the UNA’s policy hierarchy and 
regulatory framework. It defines and differentiates between a Board Policy and an 
Administrative Policy and how they interact with each other. Furthermore, the proposed 
document is intended to create a degree of consistency in the structure and content of 
the UNA’s corporate policies. Finally, the proposed policy also prescribes the general 
public’s access to Board Policies. 

Non-profit organizations and municipalities often have an established policy framework 
or “policy on policies” that outlines this critical corporate governance mechanism. In 

119



   
                 

Page 2 of 3 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

large public-facing organizations, these frameworks may include further details 
regarding key parts of the policy management process (e.g. who can initiate the 
development of policies, stakeholders that must be involved) and the use cases of 
different policy tools. In comparison, the UNA’s policy management program is 
straightforward, in part due to the size and scale of the UNA and its work. Nevertheless, 
the proposed Corporate Policy Framework creates a baseline that encourages 
consistency, clarity, and quality in the UNA’s policy management program and can be 
further expanded if necessary. 

An index is attached to this report to provide an overview of all UNA corporate policies 
in effect and their respective approval authority. For greater clarity, this proposed 
framework does not include a reorganization of the existing policies’ respective approval 
authority. However, following the approval of this framework, the Board may determine 
that certain policies’ respective approval authority should be changed. For example, the 
Board may decide that a specific policy under the Board’s authority should be revised to 
being under the Chief Administrative Officer’s authority instead. 

   

Financial Implications 
None. 

 

Operational Implications 
The operational implication of the proposed policy concerns the 3-year periodic review 
timeline that applies to all corporate policies if a review timeline for any particular one 
does not already exist. The UNA will have to invest resources into reviewing all of the 
applicable policies. 

 

Strategic Objective 

Governance 

 

Attachments 

1. Corporate Policy Framework (#01-19) – May 2024 Draft 
2. UNA Corporate Policy Index – May 2024 

 

 

120



   
                 

Page 3 of 3 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Concurrence 

None. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Chris Hakim 
Corporate Services Specialist 

 

 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

121



  

Policy #01-19 Corporate Policy Framework  Page 1 of 3 
 
 

BOARD POLICY 

 

 
Purpose 
The Board establishes corporate policies to provide directions regarding the activities and 
internal affairs of the UNA. The Chief Administrative Officer (the “CAO”) establishes corporate 
policies with respect to matters that are within the responsibilities delegated or assigned to them 
by the Board.  
 
The purposes of this Policy are: 

• to establish a framework for the development, approval, review, revision, repeal, and 
maintenance of the UNA’s corporate policies; and 

• to specify matters relating generally to the UNA’s corporate policies. 

 
Scope 
This Policy applies to all UNA corporate policies.  
 
1. Definitions 

1.1. Administrative Policy means a corporate policy approved by the CAO pursuant to 
section 2.1. 

1.2. Board Policy means a corporate policy approved by the Board. 
 

2. Roles and Responsibilities 
2.1. The CAO may approve corporate policies that are within the scope of responsibilities 

delegated or assigned by the Board to them, to other employees, or to volunteers or 
contractors. 

2.2. The Board is responsible for the review, revision, and repeal of Board Policies. 
2.2.1. The CAO shall assist the Board in reviewing, revising, and repealing Board 

Policies. 
2.3. The CAO is responsible for the review, revision, and repeal of Administrative Policies.  
2.4. The CAO may revise Board Policies to make clerical changes that do not change the 

substance of the policies and shall report such revisions to the Board.  
2.5. Where the CAO has established, reviewed, revised, or repealed an Administrative 

Policy, the CAO shall report this to the Board. 
 
 

TITLE:      Corporate Policy Framework POLICY #01-19 
CATEGORY:  Administration 
AUTHORITY: Board of Directors 
ADOPTED: – 
EFFECTIVE: – 

122



  

Policy #01-19 Corporate Policy Framework  Page 2 of 3 
 
 

BOARD POLICY 

3. Conflicts, Ancillary Material, and Review of Policies 
3.1. To the extent of a conflict between a Board Policy and an Administrative Policy, the 

Board Policy prevails. 
3.2. To the extent of a conflict between Board Policies, the Board is to determine which 

policy prevails. The CAO may do the same with respect to a conflict between 
Administrative Policies. 

3.3. The CAO may establish procedures, rules, manuals, and guidelines with respect to 
Administrative Polices, but not with respect to Board Policies. 

3.4. If a corporate policy does not specify when it is to be reviewed, it should be reviewed at 
least every three years. 

 
4. Content, Format, Classification, and Availability of Policies 

4.1. A corporate policy shall specify: 
4.1.1. whether it is a Board Policy or an Administrative Policy; 
4.1.2. a title; 
4.1.3. the approving authority (the Board or the CAO); 
4.1.4. the date when it was adopted; 
4.1.5. the date when it comes into effect; 
4.1.6. a classification index; 
4.1.7. the purposes for the policy; and 
4.1.8. when it is to be reviewed. 

4.2. It is recommended, but not required, that corporate policies be prepared in the format in 
Appendix A. 

4.3. The CAO shall develop a classification system for corporate policies and assign each 
corporate policy a classification index. 

4.4. The CAO shall make Board Policies available to the public. 
 

5. Transition 
5.1. A corporate policy existing at the time of approval of this Policy that specifies the Board 

as its approving authority is a Board Policy. 
5.1.1. For greater certainty, the Board Rules of Procedure are a Board Policy. 

5.2. A corporate policy existing at the time of approval of this Policy that specifies the CAO 
as its approving authority is an Administrative Policy. 

5.3. Except for section 4.3, article 4 does not apply with respect to a corporate policy 
existing at the time of approval of this Policy before the corporate policy is reviewed. 

5.4. A corporate policy existing at the time of approval of this Policy that does not specify 
when it is to be reviewed shall be reviewed within three years of the approval of this 
Policy. 

 
 

123



  

Policy #01-19 Corporate Policy Framework  Page 3 of 3 
 
 

BOARD POLICY 

Policy History & Information 
Original Policy Approval Date   DATE 
Review Date     DATE (every three years) 
 
 
Related Documents & Legislation 

• Societies Act (SBC 2015, c. 18) 
• UNA Bylaws 
• UNA Delegation of Authority Policy (#01-14) 
• UNA CAO Powers, Duties and Functions Policy (#01-15) 

 

124



  

Policy # TITLE  Page 1 of 1 
 
 

BOARD POLICY 

APPENDIX A 
 

 
Purpose 
- 
 
Scope 
- 
 
Definitions 
- 
 
Written Policy (title not required) 
- 
 
Policy History & Information 
Original Policy Approval Date   DATE 
Revised Policy Approval Date  DATE 
Review Date     DATE 
 
Related Documents & Legislation 
- 
 

TITLE:      Policy Name POLICY #– 
CATEGORY:  – 
AUTHORITY: – 
ADOPTED: – 
EFFECTIVE: – 

125



Policy # Category Policy Subject Authority Date Created Date Last Revised
#01‐02 Administration Facilitate Political Presentations Board of Directors 17‐Mar‐07 N/A

#01‐03 Administration
Acknowledge the Contribution of 
Community Volunteers Board of Directors 13‐Mar‐07 N/A

#01‐04 Administration UNA Community Privacy Board of Directors 11‐Dec‐07 17‐Mar‐20
#01‐09 Administration Outdoor Bench Naming Board of Directors 13‐Oct‐15 N/A
#01‐10 Administration Video Surveillance Board of Directors 13‐Oct‐15 N/A

#01‐11 Administration
Video Surveillance – Old Barn Community 
Centre Board of Directors 23‐Sep‐16 N/A

#01‐13 Administration Gifts Board of Directors 17‐Sep‐19 N/A
#01‐14 Administration Delegation of Authority Board of Directors 16‐Feb‐21 N/A
#01‐15 Administration CAO Powers, Duties, and Functions Board of Directors 20‐Apr‐21 21‐Nov‐23

#01‐16 Administration
UNA Board, Appointees, and 
Representatives Code of Conduct Board of Directors 17‐Apr‐22 N/A

#01‐17 Administration Sponsorship Board of Directors 20‐Jun‐23 N/A
#01‐18 Administration Records Management Board of Directors 21‐Nov‐23 N/A
#02‐01 Health & Safety Occupational Health and Safety Board of Directors 12‐Mar‐13 N/A

#02‐03 Health & Safety
Discrimination, Harassment, Bullying in the 
Workplace Board of Directors 11‐Feb‐14 15‐Sep‐23

#02‐04 Human Resources Compensation Board of Directors 08‐Feb‐11 17‐Oct‐23
#02‐05 Human Resources Extended Absence Board of Directors 08‐Mar‐16 14‐Mar‐17
#02‐06 Human Resources Childcare Board of Directors 13‐Jun‐17 N/A
#02‐07 Human Resources Criminal Record Check Chief Administrative Officer 01‐Feb‐21 N/A
#02‐08 Human Resources Facility Users Code of Conduct Board of Directors 19‐May‐21 N/A
#02‐09 Human Resources Work from Home Chief Administrative Officer 22‐Jun‐21 N/A
#02‐10 Human Resources Professional Development Chief Administrative Officer 26‐Apr‐22 N/A
#03‐02 Recreation Community Centres Rental Board of Directors 17‐Mar‐20 N/A
#04‐03 Communications Community Newspaper Board of Directors 13‐Dec‐22 N/A
#05‐01 Finance Food and Beverage Board of Directors 09‐May‐06 11‐Apr‐17

#05‐04 Finance
Donations for the Purpose of Community 
Amenities Board of Directors 13‐Mar‐07 N/A

#05‐07 Finance Neighbours Fund Reserve Board of Directors 08‐Apr‐08 N/A

#05‐09 Finance Neighbours Fund Reserve Amendment #1
Board of Directors 13‐Oct‐09 N/A

#05‐10 Finance Neighbours Fund Reserve Amendment #2
Board of Directors 14‐Dec‐10 N/A

#05‐12 Finance Use of Staff Vehicles in UNA Business Board of Directors 14‐Feb‐12 11‐Apr‐17

#05‐13 Finance Neighbours Fund Reserve Amendment #3
Board of Directors 14‐Dec‐10 N/A

#05‐14 Finance Capital Reserve Board of Directors 16‐Jan‐24 N/A

126



   
                 

Page 1 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Report Date: April 22, 2024 

Meeting Date: May 7, 2024 

From:   Chris Hakim, Corporate Services Specialist 

Subject:  2024 UNA Board of Directors Election  

 
Background 
Pursuant to the UNA Bylaws, an election of directors must be held in 2024. 

This report details the draft plans thus far for the 2024 UNA Board of Directors election 
and topics that staff would like the Board’s feedback regarding.  

 

Decision Requested  

For information. 

 

Discussion  

The UNA Bylaws stipulate that an election of directors must be held in 2024. The Board 
is responsible for setting various election deadlines and periods, amongst other related 
items. Based on the UNA Bylaws and our own logistical requirements, staff have 
prepared a draft election timeline that will be proposed to the Board at its July 2024 
meeting for approval. 

Date Item Relevant Bylaw 
September 20, 2024 Deadline to notify the members of the 

election and publish the notice on the 
website and newspaper 

Bylaw 5.4 

Bylaw 5.5 

October 4, 2024 Deadline by which nominations must 
be received 

Bylaw 5.3(a) 

November 4, 2024 Deadline by which the UNA must 
send the candidate information and 
voting instructions to the members 

Bylaw 5.3(b) 

November 4, 2024 Voting period begins Bylaw 5.3(c) 

November 26, 2024 Voting period ends Bylaw 5.3(c) 

 

127



   
                 

Page 2 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Staff are also preparing the following items: 

• the notice of election; 
• the nomination form and call for nominations; 
• an election information guide for candidates and their representatives; 
• an election package for voters, which will include instructions on how to vote; and 
• the online voting portal. 

In the past, the Board has normally reviewed and approved the “how to vote” guide and 
the ballot template. Staff will be sharing that guide and ballot template with the Board at 
its July 2024 meeting.  

 

Election Official 

In past elections, the UNA has hired an external election official to oversee the ballot 
counting process and tallying of results. However, since voting will be conducted online, 
ballot counting is done automatically by the online voting system. The only manual input 
required from the UNA is to start the tallying of results, which is as simple as clicking a 
button. In addition, Simply Voting will provide a certified copy of the election results 
once they have been tallied to the UNA. 

On the other hand, the UNA Bylaws now specify that the Chief Administrative Officer is 
responsible for the conduct of an election for which the Board has not appointed 
another person to be responsible.  

Staff would like the Board’s feedback as to whether there is a need to hire an external 
election official and, if so, what would they be responsible for. 

 

Access to the Membership Register 

The UNA’s membership register contains the Resident Members’ names, email 
addresses, and mailing addresses. In accordance with the Societies Act, the Resident 
Members have the rights to inspect and copy the UNA’s membership register. The 
Board can and has previously restricted access to the membership register. However, 
section 25(7) of the Societies Act allows members to inspect and copy the membership 
register for the purpose of influencing the voting of members.1  

Leading up to the 2021 election, the Board approved the following resolutions pertaining 
to the membership register: 

 
1 Section 25(7) of the Societies Act specifies other activities that are also exceptions to the restrictions on 
inspecting and copying the membership register, but influencing the voting of members is most relevant to the 
topic of this report. 

128



   
                 

Page 3 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

“THAT the Board confirm in accordance with Section 25 (1) of the Societies Act, 
that members’ right to inspect the UNA’s register of members is restricted on the 
basis that inspection would be harmful to the UNA and to the privacy and other 
interests of its members. 

THAT the Board further resolve that a candidate for election to the UNA Board 
(each a Candidate”) may, upon application under section 25(3) of the Societies 
Act, be granted, temporary possession and use of electronic information 
containing a copy of the members’ register, listing each member and their name, 
mailing address, email and phone number, if available, on condition that: (a) the 
electronic information will be returned to the UNA within 3 days of the end of the 
election; (b) the members’ information will only be used for the purposes of 
legitimate election campaigning; and (c) all electronic and paper copies of the 
members’ information will be deleted promptly upon conclusion of the election. 

THAT the Board further resolves that a communication will be issued to all 
members of the UNA inviting members to, by notice to the Society, elect not to 
have their email contact information shared with Candidates, and that the UNA 
shall not share Candidates such email contact information of a member who 
objects.” 

In summary, the Board restricted access to the membership register, allowed 
candidates for an election to request temporary access and use of the membership 
register, and issued a communication to Resident Members inviting them to opt out of 
having their email contact information shared with candidates. Flash drives containing 
copies of the membership register were provided to authorized candidates for 
temporary possession and use. 

A report from the Chief Administrative Officer at the time concerning the membership 
register is attached.2 

Staff would like the Board’s feedback if the existing approach to the membership 
register as it relates to the election should be maintained or changed. 

 

Election Rules 

Bylaw 5.14 authorizes the Board to establish the rules for an election that are not 
already provided in the UNA Bylaws. For the 2021 election, the Board approved the 
following resolution: 

“THAT the Board confirm the following election signage information: 

 
2 The 2021 report details three requested decisions that are similar to, but are not, the resolutions approved by the 
Board. The actual resolutions approved are the ones stated in this 2024 report. 

129



   
                 

Page 4 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

• In the private realm, candidates may make arrangements themselves with 
owners or landlords. 

• In the public realm (parks, boulevards, sidewalks, etc.), the UNA reserves the 
right to remove any campaign signs that may obstruct traffic, hinder 
pedestrian visibility, or generally create a hazard to the public. 

• All election signs in the public realm must be removed no later than 24 hours 
after the election.” 

For the 2024 election, staff will be recommending similar election signage rules for the 
Board to approve. Nevertheless, we would like the Board’s feedback on if there are any 
other election rules that they would like staff to prepare a recommendation for. 

 

Financial Implications 
Currently, there is $40,000 allocated for the 2024 AGM and 2024 election. Decisions 
related to the topics described in this report are not expected to drastically change the 
budgeted costs of these events.  

 

Operational Implications 
Decisions related to the topics described in this report will have operational implications 
on the conduct of the 2024 election, the scale of which will vary depending on the 
feedback received. 

 

Strategic Objective 

Governance 

 

Attachments 

1. UNA 2021 Release of Membership Data Report 

 

Concurrence 

None. 

 

 

130



   
                 

Page 5 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Chris Hakim 
Corporate Services Specialist 

 

 

_____________________________ 
Paul Thorkelsson 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

131



   
                 

Page 1 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Report Date: July 6, 2021 

Meeting Date: July 20, 2021 

From:   Sundance Topham, Chief Administrative Officer 

Subject:  2021 Release of Membership Data 

Background 
At the June 15, 2021 UNA Open Session the Board asked for clarification in regard to the 
sharing of UNA membership data (register of members) with candidates. Information in 
regard to past practice is contained within this report, along with an overview of the legal 
framework, and a recommendation that the Board confirm the process moving forward. 
Decision Requested  

1. THAT the Board confirm in accordance with Section 25 (1) of the Societies Act, 
that members’ right to inspect the UNA’s register of members is restricted on the 
basis that inspection would be harmful to the UNA and to the privacy and other 
interests of its members.  Accordingly, access to the members’ register shall be 
by application to the UNA under section 25(3) of the Societies Act and only for 
the purposes listed in section 25(7) of the Societies Act.  

2. THAT the Board further resolve that a candidate for election to the UNA Board 
(each a Candidate”) may, upon application under section 25(3) of the Societies 
Act, be granted, temporary possession and use of a flash drive containing an 
electronic copy of the members’ register, listing each member and their name, 
mailing address, email and phone number, if available, on condition that:  (a) the 
flash drive will be returned to the UNA within 3 days of the end of the election; (b) 
the members’ information will only be used for the purposes of legitimate election 
campaigning; and (c) all electronic and paper copies of the members’ information 
will be deleted promptly upon the conclusion of the election. 

3. That the Board further resolves that a communication will be issued to all 
members of the UNA inviting members to, by notice to the Society, elect not to 
have their email contact information shared with Candidates, and that the UNA 
shall not share with Candidates such email contact information of a member who 
objects. 
 

Discussion  

At the June 15, 2021 meeting the Board asked for clarification in regard to how 
membership information was being disseminated to election candidates – noting that 
there had been concerns raised about the process after the last election. 

A review of the elections materials shows that the following information was provided to 
candidates at the last election: 

132



   
                 

Page 2 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

CONTACTING RESIDENTS DURING THE ELECTION 
Candidates will be provided with a flash drive containing the list of UNA members with 
their name, address and phone number, if available. A printout of the UNA members 
list that contains email contacts will be available at the UNA administrative office for 
inspection. The board agrees in limiting the access to emails in a motion at a board 
meeting on September 22, 2018 to comply with the Societies Act and protect 
residents’ privacy. Candidates must return the flash drive within three (3) days of the 
election and agree not to use the information for any other purpose aside from 
campaigning. 

Although staff have been unable to find the motion that was passed in support of this 
process, this information appears to comply with the information contained within the 
Societies Act, which contains the following provisions: 

1. S.24(1) allows a UNA member to inspect records that the UNA is required by 
s.20(1) to keep (but see point 2). Those records include the UNA’s register of 
members, including contact information provided by each member.  There is no 
requirement to include email information on the members’ register, but it does 
constitute “contact information” provided by each member within the meaning of 
section 20(1). 

2. S.25(1) allows the directors, by resolution, to restrict members’ right to inspect 
the register of members if the directors are of the opinion “that the inspection 
would be harmful to the society or to the interests of one or more of its members”.  

3. If the right of members to inspect the register of members is restricted, members 
nonetheless have a right of inspection under s. 25 but can only use the 
information for limited purposes, one of which is in connection with “an effort to 
influence the voting of members”.  If access to the register is restricted, the 
member seeking access must make an application to the society that includes 
the statement that “the information obtained from the inspection of the register of 
members will not be used except as permitted under subsection (7)”. 

4. S.27 allows a member to obtain a copy of the records that the member is entitled 
to inspect. 

Our legal counsel reviewed our existing language, the Societies Act and considered the 
various privacy implications of sharing member contact information.  A summary of the 
advice appears below: 

• Members have a right under the Societies Act to inspect the society’s register of 
members (the “Register”) (ss. 20(1)(h) and 24).   

• Under the Personal Information Protection Act (“PIPA”) members also have a 
right to personal information privacy, which extends to their personal email 
information.   

133



   
                 

Page 3 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

• However, PIPA will be read and interpreted in harmony with the provisions of the 
Societies Act. Accordingly, the inspection of the Register under the Societies Act 
does not give rise to a breach of PIPA, which permits disclosures that are 
authorized or permitted by statute. 

• Nevertheless, the UNA is subject to a general obligation under PIPA to conduct 
its personal information management practices “reasonably”.  Therefore, where a 
right to restrict or limit access to member personal contact information exists, it is 
consistent with that obligation for the Board to consider whether to impose such 
limits or protections.  In considering this issue, the Board should also take into 
account the complaints it received about email use during the last election and 
the extent to which members have been provided with notice that their 
information may be disclosed for these purposes. 

• We note that the Societies Act does not expressly require the Register to contain 
email contact information.  It does require the Register to contain “contact 
information provided by a member” (s. 20(1)(h)), but does not specify that this 
must include “all” contact information provided by the member.  One approach to 
protecting member privacy is therefore to omit the email contact information from 
the Register, and take the position that mailing addresses are sufficient to meet 
the section 20 requirement to provide “contact information”.  That approach 
aligns with the former Society Act (now repealed) which only required mailing 
address to be included in the Register, but on the wording of the current 
legislation, is not entirely without doubt. 

• The Societies Act also provides at section 25 that the board has a discretion to 
restrict access to the Register, if the directors are of the opinion that inspection 
would be harmful to the society or the interests of one or more of its members.  
Restricting access to the Register necessarily means that members would have 
to apply for access and undertake to use the data only for the purposes permitted 
by section 25(7) of the Act, which are limited to communications for society 
business.  However, this approach does not resolve the problem of the members 
who complained about receiving any email communications, such as from 
candidates during an election. 

• However, we note that section 25 is not explicit about whether the right to restrict 
access to the Register provides the board with a discretion to impose other 
restrictions beyond those set out in section 25 itself.  For example, it is possible 
to argue that section 25(1) should be interpreted as providing the board with a 
broad discretion to restrict access to the information of one or more members or 
to certain categories of information in the Register.  Such a discretion did exist 
under the previous Society Act.   On the basis of that interpretation, the Board 
could take the position either that it is restricting access to email addresses 

134



   
                 

Page 4 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

generally or to the email addresses of members who object to this information 
being provided. 

• If the board decides to impose restrictions, it should also consider the extent to 
which email contact information ought to be provided for use in connection with 
society business, given the greater ease and cost effectiveness of 
communicating by email.   

• The existing practice permits Candidates to review a list of email addresses, but 
not obtain electronic copies.  This is intended to be a barrier to email 
communications from candidates to members.  However, in the last election, one 
candidate copied the list and used the email addresses which generated 
complaints.   

• Practically speaking, there does seem to be some value in making email contact 
information available to Candidates for election campaigning purposes, if it is 
used responsibly and subject to appropriate controls.   

• Taking all of these factors into consideration, including the privacy interests at 
stake and the absence of case law clarifying how the Societies Act would be 
interpreted, we recommend that the UNA consider providing members who a 
notice about the disclosure of the email contact information to candidates, and 
provide them an opportunity to opt out of the disclosure of this information.  
Section 25 could then be used to restrict access to the email addresses of those 
members who object.  It the board decides to take this approach, then the UNA’s 
privacy policies should also be amended to reflect this process (if applicable). 

On the basis of my investigations and the legal advice we received, it is recommended 
that the Board confirm the process for restricting inspection of the register of members 
used by the UNA. Once the Board confirms the process staff will work with legal to 
develop a form for member access that conforms to Section 25 of the Societies Act.  

If the Board would like to change the existing process, now is the time to propose 
alternatives, noting that the information is required to be included in the information to 
candidates and prospective candidates, which is being prepared this summer.  
 

Financial Implications 
None 

 

Operational Implications 
The provision of membership data to election candidates will impact the Administration, 
Communications and Operations departments. 

135



   
                 

Page 5 of 5 
 

UNA BOARD MEETING 
OPEN SESSION 
 

Strategic Objective 

Moving forward the election ties in directly with the UNA Strategic Priority of UNA 
Governance. 

 

Attachments 

None 

 

Concurrence 

1. Wegland Sit, Operations Manager 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Sundance Topham 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

 

 

136


	B. 2024.05.21 Agenda - Open Session.pdf
	A. CALL TO ORDER
	B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	D. DELEGATIONS
	E. EXTERNAL REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS
	F. REPORTS
	G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	H. NEW BUSINESS
	I. ADJOURNMENT

	Binder1.pdf
	C.1. 2024.04.16 Open Session Minutes - Draft.pdf
	E.1. May 2024 C+CP Report
	Film & Events Notification
	Roadwork update
	NCAP Update
	Development Update
	Community Update

	F.1. May 2024 Management Report.pdf
	F.2. UNA Online Guidebook Report.pdf
	F.3. UNA Administration Office Lease Renewal Report.pdf
	F.3. Fourth Lease Extension Agreement - UNA
	F.3. Wesbrook Village & UNA Sublease_January 2018
	F.4. Print Options for TCR Report.pdf
	F.5. UNA Staff Parking Permit Report.pdf
	F.6. UBC Community Amenity Charges Report.pdf
	F.6. CAC Letter to UNA - 23-24 Revenue and Expenditures
	Blank Page

	F.7.a. Corporate Policy Framework Policy Report.pdf
	F.7.a. #01-19 Corporate Policy Framework - May 2024 Draft
	UNA Corporate Policy Framework - May 2024 DRAFT
	Appendix A - UNA Policy Template
	APPENDIX A


	F.7.a. UNA Corporate Policy Index - 2024
	F.7.b. 2024 Elections Planning Report.pdf
	F.7.b. 2021 UNA Election - Release of Membership Data.pdf
	CONTACTING RESIDENTS DURING THE ELECTION





